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HISTORICAL SOCIETIES

At the meeting on June 3, members of the Adams County His-
torical Society heard Dr. Wilbur E. Tilberg tell of his youth in
Kansas in the late 1880's. Dr. Charles Glatfelter and Dr. Robert
Bloom, of Gettysburg College, interviewed him and provided back-
ground information. On August 5, the society sponsored a tour
to the Francis Scott Key house, the Pipe Creek defense line of
the Gettysburg campaign, and General Meade's headquarters, all
in the Taneytown, Maryland, vicinity.

The Allegheny City Society elected the following officers at
the spring meeting: James A. Dorsey, president; Ray L. Heddaeus,
NXice-president; Adrian J. Briggs. recording secretary; Mrs. Martha
O'Moore, corresponding secretary; and Miss B. W. Schocuer,
treasurer. Members of the society are working to save the old
Allegheny Post Office from demolition. The chronological history
of Allegheny City compiled by A. J. Briggs has been revised and
printed in book form.

The Allegheny-Kiski Valley Historical Society held a dinner
reception on August 27 to celebrate the 1 10th anniversary of the
discovery of oil at Titusville on August 27, 1859. Guest of honor
at the dinner was Glendon Smith, last surviving grandchild of
"Uncle Billy" Smith, the man who brought in the first oil well
for Colonel Drake. A ten foot replica of the Drake Well, built
by the late oil historian Jesse Harwell Gravatt, was unveiled at
the dinner.

On August 17, members of the Historic Preservation Trust of
Berks County toured the sites which the group is preserving. A
picnic supper at the Mouns Jones House completed the evening.
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The Mouns Jones House Country Fair was held on October 11
from 10:00 to 5:00.

As part of its centennial year celebration, the Historical Society
of Berks County sponsored a public reading of the Declaration of
Independence on July 8, the date in 1776 when it was originally
read. Sheriff Harold A. Yetzer read the Declaration at ceremonies
attended by the County Commissioners and the Mayor and Council
of Reading. Alan M. Hawman, Jr., president of the Berks Counts
Bar Association, gave the chief address. Wilbur C. Dickinson
presented his photo essay "People, Places, Pastimes, 1869" On
September 27. Dr. William Hummel, Albright College, has been
named editor of the society's Historical Review.

The Blair County Historical Society recently toured Prince
Gallitzin State Park and Glendale Dam, and concluded this sum-
mer outing with a visit to the Lemon House. This early railroad
inn is serving as the headquarters of the Allegheny Portage Rail-
road National Historic Site. At the inn, the National Park Service
is currently providing a fifteen minute slide lecture depicting
canal and railroad travel between Pittsburgh and Philadelphia from
1834 to 1854.

The Bucks County Historical Society has engaged Dr. Claire
Gilbride Fox to act as museum consultant and advisor to the board,
officers and staff. She is to prepare a list of recommendations for
the future operation of the society to assist the Board in develop-
ing long-range plans. Robert R. Macdonald has resigned as
curator to begin work for his doctorate at the Eleutherian Mills-
Hagley Foundation.

The annual meeting of the Centre County Historical Society in
I\ay featured a slide lecture by Hubert Koch entitled "A Century
of Progress-One Hundred Years of State College and Penn
State." The society held a picnic on July 30. At the September
meeting, Hugh Manchester and Paul Dubbs discussed the "Central
Railroad of Pennsylvania."

Members of the Chester County Historical Society took their
annual pilgrimage on July 12, to the studio of Violet Oakley in
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Chestnut Hill. Miss Edith Emerson, companion of Miss Oakley,
talked of the artist and her work. She then guided the tour through
tie Woodmere Gallery.

At the June meeting of the Clarion County Historical Society,
Donald J. Woodland, chairman of the Baker Trail Development
of the American Youth Hostels, Inc., gave an illustrated talk on
the Baker Trail. The society took its annual out-of-county his-
torical tour on June 26, and visited the covered bridge at McGees
Mills, Canoe Place at Cherry Tree, the Catholic Church in Carroll-
town, the Indian trail to the east of Carrolltown, and Horseshoe
Curve at Altoona. Raymond C. Garvin of the Blair County Tourist
Bureau met the group there, and served as guide for the Altoona
area during the afternoon.

Members of the Clinton County Historical Society participated
in one of the recent meetings by bringing their own old guns and
ammunition to the meeting and joining in a general discussion
following a talk by two well known authorities on the subject. At
another meeting John Joseph Stoudt of Kutztown State College
gave an illustrated lecture about the various phases of illuminating
art as practiced by the Pennsylvania Germans. Charles Kent of
the history department at Lock Haven State College is directing
the rearrangement of items in the museum to allow their more
advantageous display.

The Historical Society of the Cocalico Valley has announced
plans to publish a fourth booklet in the series by Milton H.
Heinicke about Ephrata. Scheduled publication date is December
first.

The Colonial Philadelphia Historical Society held its fourteenth
annual Youth Award Program on May 15 at Congress Hall.
Awards totaling $1,500 were presented to the thirteen students
who scored highest in an examination on colonial history. Dr.
Margaret B. Tinkcom, historian of the Philadelphia Historical
Commission, was the speaker for the evening.

At the annual dinner meeting of the Conshohocken Historical
Society in May, Dr. Joseph Leary, vice-president, gave a slide
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presentation of the history of the Harry family. Dr. Leary later
presented this talk to the Plymouth Meeting Historical Society,

The May 19 meeting of the Dauphin County Historical Society
was held in the Market Square Church where the society was
formed in May, 1869. Evan J. Miller presented the program. Tn

June, Merlo Hartzell talked of meetings of the society held dur-
ing the last hundred years.

The annual meeting of the Delaware County Historical Society
was held at the Williamson School for Mechanical Trades on
September 28. A dinner meeting on October 6 at the MacMorland
Center of P.M.C. Colleges featured a talk by Rev. David A. Mac-
Queen on "John P. Crozer, Pietistic Businessman." The borough
of Upland, which is celebrating its centennial this year, grew
chiefly as the result of the Crozer family's establishing a mill there.
The society is cooperating with other groups to raise the $14,000
necessary to begin restoration of the Old Courthouse in Chester.

The annual dinner of the Elk County Historical Society in
April was a'celebration of the society's fifth anniversary. Professor
Samuel A. King, of the Du Bois Campus of Penn State, discussed
"Little Known Facts on Elk County History."

The June meeting of the Goschenhoppen Historians took place
at the McCoach barn on the Jacob Reiff Park property recently
acquired by Lower Salford Township. Robert C. Bucher de-
scribed the characteristics of early American barns. A covered
dish picnic supper was held on July 17. The third annual Folk
Festival on August 15 and 16 featured nearly 125 craftsmen
demonstrating 45 crafts.

The Harmonie Associates sponsored a versamzlung, or apple-
fest, and concert on September 28. On November 19, Eric de
Jonge, Pennsylvania Historical and Museum Commission, will
describe early Pennsylvania Christmases.

The Jefferson County Historical Society participated in the
annual Jefferson County Laurel Festival again this year by float-
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Ing a log raft on the Red Bank Creek. Arthur Altman supervised
the construction of the raft in the same manner as the old river
rafts were constructed. A large replica of historic Brockway was
also displayed under the society's auspices.

The Kittochtinny Historical Society held a tour of historic sites
on June 21, for the first time in its existence. Members visited
the Captain Samuel Patton homesite, Fort McCord, the site of
Fort Armstrong, Edenville Furnace, James Chambers' office, and
Mt. Pleasant Inn, and ended the day with a dinner at the Fort
Loudon Inn.

Speakers at recent Lackawanna Historical Society meetings
have been: Col. Zim E. Lawhon, "History and Present Status of
the R. 0. T. C."; Timothy Scully, "Political Vituperation Local
and National"; and George A. Spohrer, "The Knox Coal Disas-
ter." At the annual dinner meeting on May 21, the Honorable
T. Linus Hoban presented "My Life in the Lackawanna County
Courts."

The Lancaster Community Historians are enjoying their five
summer field trips to various parts of Lancaster County. "Around
Strasberg," by C. D. Spotts, will soon be released as the Com-
munity Historians Yearbook.

The Lancaster Mennonite Conference Historical Society held
an open house on August 23 to mark its fifth year in its present
headquarters. Over 12,000 persons have visited the Mennonite
Information Center this year.

The bimonthly meeting of the Ligonier Valley Historical Society
on August 4 attracted a crowd of approximately 300 persons.
Through the courtesy of the Fort Ligonier Memorial Foundation,
their new promotional film "Yes, Yes, Not Oui, Oui," was
viewed. The film relates the story of the early history of the United
States, and the manner in which the English victory in the French
and Indian War insured our development as an English-speaking
rather than a French-speaking nation. The film is available for
group showings through Richard W. Bittner, Fort Ligonier Me-

477



PENNSYLVANIA HISTORY

morial Foundation, South Market Street, Ligonier, Pennsylva1lia
15658.

At a dinner meeting of the Lycoming County Historical Society
on September 25, James C. Humes, speech writer for Presidenlt
Nixon, spoke of "History in the Making." On October 16, James
P. Bressler, dean of applied arts and sciences, Williamsport Area
Community College, described "The Wild Lycoming-Stream of
History."

The Marple Newtown Historical Society underwent incorpora-
tion procedures last spring to gain the authority to restore the
Bartram Covered Bridge, built in 1860. Enough donations have
been received to allow this work to begin.

Recently elected officers of the Mercer County Historical So-
ciety are: John G. Johnson, president; Orvis Anderson and David
Miller, vice-presidents; Helen Reed, secretary; and Mrs. James
Patterson, treasurer.

Members of the Monroe County Historical Society who at-
tended the annual tour traveled to Jim Thorpe, Carbon County,
on June 28. They visited the Asa Packer Mansion, the Carbon
County Courthouse, St. Mark's Church, and the Jim Thorpe
Mausoleum.

The recently organized Monroeville Historical Society has re-
cently received its charter. The group will receive the old Mc-
Ginley house, built in 1804, as a gift from the Westinghouse
Electric Corporation, which presently owns the land upon which
the house is standing. James Mirro, president of the society, has
invited any interested persons to attend its meetings, which are
held the third Monday of each month at 8 p.m. in the Church
of Christ, Center Road and Northern Pike.

The Montour County Historical Society held open house at
the Montgomery Museum in Danville and the Mooresburg School
Museum on June 8. Approximately 450 persons toured one or
both sites. Recently elected officers are: Thomas D. Magill, pres-
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ident; Ernest Bower, Jr., vice-president; Miss Julia M. Warner,
secretary; and Miss Helen Carodiskey, treasurer.

From the sale of Thomas Taber's "Muncy Valley Lifeline," the
Muncy Historical Society and Museum of History has realized
sufficient funds to redecorate the upstairs room of the historical
house, restore the period rooms, and repaint the exterior of the
building. The society is represented on the "Site Preservation
Committee" for Lycoming County.

The New Brighton Historical Society received its charter from
the Beaver County Courts in May, 1968. Meetings are held in the
Merrick Free Art Gallery the fourth Tuesday of each month. The
society sponsored the recent dedication of a historical marker at
"White Cottage," the New Brighton home of the author Grace
Greenwood. Highlight of the summer meetings was a theater
party, open to all in the community who wish to attend.

The Newville Historical Society met on September 18 to hear
William H. Shank describe "Vanderbilt's Folly."

The Historical Society of Pennsylvania is in the process of re-
ceiving the papers of General Anthony J. Drexel Biddle (1896-
1961), four loads having so far been delivered by station wagon.
This valuable collection covers General Biddle's entire career as
a soldier and diplomat. Another large collection recently acquired
is the correspondence of the Grubb family, ironmasters of Lan-
caster County. Notable in this collection are the letters received
by Colonel Peter Grubb, Jr., during the Revolution and a large
number of Revolutionary broadsides, some of which are un-
recorded. Because of the rapid growth of the society's manuscript
collection, a new storage area of large size has been prepared for
twentieth-century collections.

The Pennsylvania Poetry Society celebrated its twentieth anni-
versary with a special luncheon program on October 18. The first
meeting of the society, on October 21, 1949, was held at the old
state museum building under the auspices of the Pennsylvania
Folklore Society. Colonel Henry W. Shoemaker was the founder
of the group.
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The Perryopolis Area Historical Society has taken an option
on 68 acres of land believed to be the site of the first voting place
in Fayette County. The land is adjacent to the Washington Giist
Mill site, presently owned by the society. The recent formation of
the Perryopolis Parks and Recreation Area is expected to facil-
itate funding of the restoration.

The Historical Society of the Philadelphia Annual Conference
of the United Methodist Church announces the publication of the
journal of Joseph Pilmore, first pastor of Old St. George's United
Methodist Church, in Philadelphia. The Journal, which covers
the time period from August 1769 to January 1774, was edited
by Frederick E. Maser, society librarian, and Howard T. Maag,
acting librarian.

The Polish Historical Commission of the Central Council of
Polish Organizations commemorated the 350th anniversity of the
enfranchisement of the Jamestown Poles on August 31. A bronze
plaque honoring the one hundredth birthday of Madame Curie
was unveiled by His Eminence Karol Cardinal Nojtyla of Poland
on September 21. Dedication ceremonies for a bronze plaque
honoring General Casimir Pulaski took place in York on Oc-
tober 11.

James H. Smythe, professor of church history at Union Theo-
logical Seminary, Richmond, and editor of the Journal of Presby-
terian History, presented the address at the twelfth annual
Founders' Day program of the Presbyterian Historical Society on
October 9. Dr. Smylie discussed "Presbyterians and the Amer-
ican Revolution."

The Shippensburg Historical Society held its annual picnic on
July 10 at the Middle Spring Road.

The Snyder County Historical Society has moved into spacious
new quarters in the basement of Seibert Hall at Susquehanna Uni-
versity. The move has enabled the society to display articles from
its collections and to house its library adequately. Beginning in
the fall, all regular meetings will be held in these rooms.
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The cornerstone for the new Somerset County Historical Mu-
s-um and Library was laid at ceremonies held on June 1. District
E ttorney Alexander Ogle served as master of ceremonies. William
N. Richards, director of the Bureau of Museums, Pennsylvania
Historical and Museum Commission, spoke encouragingly of his-
torical activity in the area. A speech by the Honorable Paul
Mahady, who was unable to be present, was read by his brother
Regis Mahady.

Members of the Theodore Burr Covered Bridge Society awarded
an honorary membership to Governor Raymond P. Shafer on
May 9. It was on this day that Governor Shafer signed the bill
passed by the General Assembly to provide an annual "See
Pennsylvania's Covered Bridges Week" in May.

The Historical Society of Trappe celebrated its annual home-
coming September 19-21. An antique show was held on Friday
and Saturday, and historic homes and churches of the area were
open to the public on Saturday. A memorial service on Sunday
afternoon was followed by the memorial caravan march through
Trappe, and a buffet dinner and musical program in the evening.

The first issue of the Union County Historical Society's journal,
"Union County's Heritage," is now available to the public at a
cost of $2.50 per copy to non-members. Charles F. Lindig and
Mrs. Charles W. Kalp served as co-editors of the journal.

The Valley Forge Historical Society held its Fete Champetre,
a garden party celebrating the announcement of the French al-
liance on May 6, 1778, at the General Maxwell headquarters, a
pre-Revolutionary house recently acquired by the Commonwealth
at Valley Forge. Historic costumes, wine tasting, homemade
gourmet delicacies, and music in the spirit of the occasion marked
the celebration. Thirty Boy Scouts from Bethel Park (Pitts-
burgh) earned their historic scout badges by refurbishing the
Conestoga wagon and the United States mail coach, labelling the
electric panorama map of the encampment, and cleaning muskets
and rifles. Two students worked during the summer to prepare
a cross-reference file of the society's acquisition file.
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As a co-sponsor of the Memorial Day raising of the three area
historical flags, the Warren County Historical Society was host
to dignitaries including Dr. S. K. Stevens, James B. Stevenson,
and Eric W. Cook, British consul in Cleveland. The society visited
the Governor Reuben Fenton Mansion, now the museum building
of the Fenton Historical Society in Jamestown, New York, on
June 8. Residents conducted a walking tour of interesting sites
in Pittsfield on August 10. Coffee and a display of local artifacts,
documents, and photographs completed the afternoon.

The Westmoreland County Historical Society has been notified
that the Pennsylvania Department of Community Affairs has
approved the county's application for Project 70 funds to be used
in the purchase of the Steele farm at Hannastown. The society
is planning to restore this site of the first courthouse west of the
Alleghenies as a historical landmark.

A Founder's Day program of the Westmoreland-Fayette His-
torical Society on June 21 featured a talk by Miss Mary Kolb on
"The Place of the, Frick Commission in the Educational Enrich-
ment of Westmoreland and Fayette Counties." Rodney D. Mosier
presented awards to local junior historians.

The Wyoming Historical and Geological Society has rewritten
the cemetery records in its collection by placing them all in
binders, rather than on the slips of paper on which they were
formerly kept. Additional material has recently been received
for the Mathias and George M. Hollenback Papers, and for the
Reynolds-Dorrance Collection. The latter contains documents
relating to the first coal company in the Wyoming Valley, and
some of the Abijah Smith Papers. The society's publication pro-
gram continues, with the eighth volume of the Susquehanna
Company Papers scheduled to be published in October, and the
new issue of the Proceedings also expected in that month. The
Wyoming Valley Garden Club contributed to the authenticity and
attractiveness of the Swetnam House this summer by cultivating
a herb garden of fifty-one varieties there.
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HISTORIC PRESERVATION
The Karthaus iron furnace in Centre County is undergoing ex-

tensive restoration under the supervision of Francis Perrot of
Frenchville, a stone mason. The project is sponsored by the Central
Pennsylvania Community Action committee, and is receiving aid
from the United States Department of Labor, the Youth Corps,
and On the Job Training. Two years were spent cleaning the
site and clearing away rubble before the crew of five regular
workers and two youths could begin actual rebuilding of the
furnace this summer.

The Middletown Historical Restoration Commission toured the
first ward of the borough, with Dr. Irwin Richman of the Penn
State Capitol Campus serving as guide. The commission hopes to
conduct further tours until the entire borough has been covered,
and then to maintain a photographic record of the picturesque and
historically valuable structures.

The Pittsburgh History and Landmarks Foundation held its
first summer walking tour on July 13, when the members ex-
plored Troy Hill. A historic landmark was placed on the Shrine
of St. Anthony. The Duquesne Incline was designated a historic
landmark at a recent ceremony, and appropriate plaques were
presented.

The Pusey House and Landingford Plantation has transferred
the land involved in their project to Delaware County as a county
historical park. The foundation will still maintain the Caleb Pusey
House and other buildings on the property, but it will now be
eligible for increased financial assistance. Foundation members are
presently raising funds to convert a large frame house into a
Reception and Orientation Center.

The Historical Society of West Newton has entered into a con-
tract with Paul V. Mitchell of Ligonier to conduct a preliminary
study of the John C. Plumer House, South Water Street, West
Newton. Measurements and drawings of the house as it now is
will be prepared.
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Historic Delaware County, Inc., and the Delaware County H:s-
torical Society, have established a "Court House Fund" to raise
the $14,000 necessary for current maintenance of the 1724 Chester
courthouse, oldest public building in the United States. WithoLlt
immediate attention, the buildings may not withstand the winter.
Bills have been introduced in the General Assembly to allow thie
Pennsylvania Historical and Museum Commission to take over
administration af the courthouse, provided that the money for
the repair work be raised. Donations may be sent to the "Court
House Fund," Historic Delaware County, Inc., Box 267, Swarth-
more, Pennsylvania.

Restoration of the Tuscarora Academy in Juniata County has
been started by the Pennsylvania Historical and Museum Com-
mission, using funds allocated from the Commonwealth's share in
Project 500 money made available by the federal government. All
the stone masonry construction will be repainted; the interior will
be replastered and painted; the original stairway leading to the
dormitory rooms on the second floor will be replaced; and the
dormitory rooms themselves will be restored.

A seminar on environmental services was held on August 12
in Harrisburg. Over 300 conservationists, highway designers and
engineers, and cabinet officials attended the seminar which was
sponsored by the Planning and Design Division of the Department
of Highways. The purpose of the gathering was to coordinate
efforts of the planners and the conservationists to insure coopera-
tive planning of future roads and to avoid environmental mistakes.

OF MEN AND MANY THINGS

Dedication ceremonies for the site of the Pennsylvania State
University Libraries Research Library on July 3 marked the be-
ginning of a new concept in the university's library services. Pre-
viously scattered research collections will be brought together to
provide more complete bibliographic information, greater depth
of collections, and much longer periods of availability.

The new library of the New York State Historical Association
was formally dedicated in conjunction with the association's an-
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nual meeting in Cooperstown July 12 and 13. Lyman H. Butter-
field, editor-in-chief of the Adams Papers at the Massachusetts
lHistorical Society, was the speaker at the ceremonies. The library
has facilities to house more than 90,000 volumes, special collec-
tions, such as the folklore and folklife archives, a newspaper
storage area for some 500,000 papers, and a special audio-visual
room for tapes, records, films, and slides. The second floor con-
tains a special manuscript department and a double classroom for
the use of the Cooperstown graduate program students.

Among the rivers to be studied under the Wild and Scenic
Rivers Act of 1968 are Pennsylvania's Allegheny and Youghio-
gheny. Secretary of the Interior Walter J. Hickel and Secretary
of Agriculture Clifford M. Hardin announced that the studies
will be made to determine whether these rivers, and twenty-five
others, will be included in the National Wild and Scenic Rivers
System.

The Snyder-Middleswarth Tall Timber Area, in Snyder County,
was formally dedicated as a National Natural Landmark at cere-
monies conducted by the United States Department of the Interior
on July 30. Euell Gibbons, noted nature writer from Beavertown,
Pennsylvania, was the principal speaker.

The Pennsylvania Dutch Folk Culture Society sponsored its
third annual Pennsylvania Dutch Folk Fair on July 19 and 20.
In addition to the traditional crafts, farm activities, and foods,
exhibits depicting seasonal celebrations and several historical pe-
riods were presented.

According to the spring bulletin of the Moravian Music Founda-
tion, Columbia Records plans to reissue selections from its three
volumes of "Music of the American Moravians" on its bargain
Odyssey label with the same title as the full series, and with the
number 32-16-0340. The abridged selection should be an interest-
ing introduction to Moravian music.

The Herodotans, the student historical society at King's College,
arranged for the address of M. Reginald de Warren, French
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Consul General at Philadelphia, on the subject, "Servan-Schreibei.
and the French Posture vis-A-vis the United States."

Joseph E. Walker, professor of history at Millersville State
College, received a research grant from the Committee for Re-
search in Economic History of the Economic History Association.
Dr. Walker will use the grant to continue his work on the early
rolling mills of Pennsylvania, with particular emphasis on the
development of the Lukens Steel Company before 1850. Dr. Walker
was the author of an article in the summer issue of Labor History
comparing wages and work opportunities for Negro and white
workers at Hopewell Furnace before the Civil War.

The Pennsylvania history faculty of Bloomsburg State College
is offering a "Seminar on Columbia County" to adults in the eve-
ning classes during the fall semester, 1969-1970.

Dr. Robert E. Carlson, chairman of the history department at
West Chester State College, has received a grant from the Amer-
ican Philosophical Society to support his research during his fall
semester sabbatical.

The Scotch-Irish Foundation is conducting a contest in which
prizes will be given for the best essay on Pennsylvania's Scotch-
Irish heritage. Further details about the contest may be obtained
from John W. McPherson, secretary, 530 Walnut Street, Phila-
delphia 19105.

An open house was held at the newly-expanded Fort Bedford
Museum on May 24. Improvements to the actual fort have been
completed, and the expanded exhibit space will allow additional
collections to be displayed.

Mrs. Juanita Johnson and her fifth grade class at Jefferson
Elementary School, Warren, received a 1968 Valley Forge
Teachers Medal for their production of the film, "We Wanted Our
Freedom And We Won It."

Archeology students from Temple University have resumed
their investigation of the old Allegheny Portage Railroad right-
of-way at the Lemon House, east of Cresson. Additional work is
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being done on Inclined Plane 8, near the Muleshoe Curve in
Blair County. David G. Crozier, research assistant to the chairman
of the department of anthropology at Temple, is serving as field
director of the work.

Field crews from the archeology section of the William Penn
Memorial Museum conducted summer archeological explorations
at two Susquehannock Indian sites just south of Washington
Boro, along the Susquehanna River. Barry Kent, state archeologist,
directed the work at the Strickler site, and Ira Smith, associate
curator of archeology, directed work at the Schultz site. A field
crew from the North Museum of Franklin and Marshall College,
directed by Fred Kinsey, worked in the same general area on
the Murry site.

Dedication ceremonies were held this summer at several of the
museums administered by the Pennsylvania Historical and Museum
Commission. On June 22, the blacksmith shop at the Pennsylvania
Farm Museum near Lancaster was opened after its removal nearly
two years ago from its original site near Gettysburg. The Fort Pitt
Museum was opened to the public on June 30. Rex T. Lohmann
is serving as curator of the museum, which provides a story of
Fort Pitt and western Pennsylvania from the 1750's to the estab-
lishment of the city of Pittsburgh. On August 8, Governor Ray-
mond P. Shafer dedicated the Drake Well Museum near Titusville.
The recently-completed museum features exhibits detailing the
development of the petroleum industry from the day the first well
was drilled at Drake Well, August 28, 1859. The railroad museum,
scheduled to be constructed near Strasburg during 1970, has re-
ceived a director, George M. Hart. He will work in the Commis-
sion's Bureau of Museums while designs and initial exhibits for
the museum are completed.

The Division of History, Pennsylvania Historical and Museum
Commission, announces the publication of two new historical
leaflets. Linda M. McCurdy wrote "The Underground Railroad
in Pennsylvania," and Dennis T. Lawson was the author of "The
Centennial Exhibition of 1876." Paul Beers rewrote the leaflet
"Harrisburg: Pennsylvania's Capital City." These leaflets are
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available at a cost of $.05 individually, and $.03 if purchase(!
in quantities of ten or more. The Division of History also has
copies available of the most recent cooperative publication of the2
Pennsylvania Historical Association. Dr. Irwin Richman was th
author of Pennsylvania's Architecture, an attractive 64-page
booklet with numerous illustrations. It sells for $1.00 and is also
available from the Division of History. Residents of Pennsylvania
should add 6% Pennsylvania state sales tax to their orders.




